SCHOOL BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Avoyelles Parish School Board met in regular session Tuesday, June 7, 2011, at 5:00 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present:

Van Kojis, President; Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Vice-President; Freeman Ford, Darrell Wiley, James Gauthier, Shelia Blackman-Dupas, Michael Lacombe, Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, and Cynthia "Cindy" Hill.

Absent: None.

An Invocation was offered by Board Member Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones.

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America led by Board Member Darrell Wiley.

1. On motion of James Gauthier, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Board adopted the minutes of the special Board meeting held Tuesday, May 31, 2011, as printed and mailed to Board members and published in <u>The Weekly News</u>, official journal of the Board. MOTION CARRIED.

2. Vice-President Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr. read a resolution of respect to the late Cleothile Dewailly, former teacher.

On motion by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Board adopted the resolution of respect to the late Cleothile Dewailly. MOTION CARRIED.

3. Mr. Darrell Wiley, Board Member, read a resolution of respect to the late Irene Smith, former teacher.

On motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Board adopted the resolution of respect to the late Irene Smith. MOTION CARRIED.

4. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine recognized and commended students for their outstanding achievements, as follows:

- 1) Louisiana School for the Agricultural Sciences: Megan Moreau, ninth grade student, placed third in the State Junior Beta Spelling Bee and is eligible to compete at the national Beta Convention.
- 2) Marksville High School: Emily Ryan and Austin Bordelon have been selected to membership on the statewide Louisiana Legislative Youth Advisory Council. Both Emily and Austin will have the responsibility of representing the voices and perspectives of all youth in Congressional District 5 on issues that are important to teens. (It is very rare to have two students selected from the same school to represent the entire district).

3) Bunkie High School: The Girls' Tennis Team finished as state runner-up. The Lady Panthers finished second in the state to Sacred Heart High School of New Orleans. Members include: Raven Naquin, Katelyn Newton, Rachel Ducote, Taylor Rabalais, Vanity Hayward, Taylor Bellow, Sydney Steele, Sarah Newton, Chaqualta James, Theresa Bootz, Kiara Blanks, and Anne Erickman, Manager.

The Boys' Tennis Team won third place behind Loyola Prep of Shreveport and Parkview Baptist of Baton Rouge. Members include: Jordan Whittington, Chas Descant, Michael Rabalais, Connor Descant, Darren Thevenote, Justin Descant, Taylor Tassin, and Aaron Husted. Head Coach: Melinda Descant

Darren Thevenote placed first in State in Tennis.

 Avoyelles High School: Avoyelles High School won second place in the Rapides Foundation Get Healthy Cenla Video Challenge. They are now \$5000 richer.

On behalf of the Board, President Van Kojis commended the students on their outstanding achievements.

5. Mr. Howard Desselle addressed the Board regarding renting of the Bunkie Middle School facility. The Board advised that they have met with legal counsel and that the facility cannot be legally leased unless payment is made or they offer in-kind services that offer a value to the community. The interested parties have provided a number of services that they want to offer, but a value needs to be placed on these items and presented to the Board for approval to pay for the lease of the gym. This Board is actively seeking leases on Section 16 properties.

6. Mr. Wilfred Ducote, Sales Tax Collector, reported that sales tax collections for the month of April, 2011 totaled \$576,054.09. Mr. Ducote stated that of this amount the 1% sales tax generated \$384,036.06 and the $\frac{1}{2}$ % sales tax generated \$192,018.03.

Also, Mr. Ducote stated that sales tax collections for the month of May, 2011 totaled \$507,423.58. Mr. Ducote stated that of this amount the 1% sales tax generated \$338,282.39 and the ½% sales tax generated \$169,141.19.

7. Mr. Michael Lacombe, Chairman of the Building and Lands Committee, presented the following report:

Building and Lands Committee Report May 24, 2011

The Building and Lands Committee of the Avoyelles Parish School Board met Tuesday, May 24, 2011, at 4:30 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present: Michael Lacombe, Chairman; Darrell Wiley, Cindy Hill, Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, Van Kojis, President; and Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent. Also present were Freeman Ford, James Gauthier, Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., and Shelia Blackman-Dupas, Board Members; Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor; Wilfred Ducote, Transportation Supervisor; Donna Bordelon, Supervisor of Special Services; and Sharon Hargis, Food Service Supervisor.

1. Mr. Ray Alford and Mr. Joe Rainer with Argent Property Services addressed the Board regarding the mineral rights to Section 16 properties.

Upon motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, the Building and Lands Committee recommended to table this item for further consideration and legal action. MOTION CARRIED.

2. Mr. Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor, presented a bid-opening committee report on leasing of Mansura and Bunkie Middle School gymnasiums. Mr. Marcotte stated that the bid-opening committee recommended to refer the bids to Assistant District Attorney James Lee for clarification and legality issues.

Upon motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, the Building and Lands Committee recommended to accept Mr. Marcotte's recommendation. MOTION CARRIED.

3. Mr. Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor, presented a bid-opening committee report on the construction of the Pre-K building at Plaucheville Elementary School. Mr. Marcotte stated that the committee acknowledged receipt of the following bids:

Cottonport Building Supply, \$189,400; F. Phillips Construction, \$179,000; Larwood Construction, \$200,250; Rusk Construction, \$147,200; Scallan Contractors, \$171,444; and Petron LLC, \$211,400.

Upon motion by Cindy Hill, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Building and Lands Committee recommended that the Board accept the low bid submitted by Rusk Construction in the amount of \$147,200 and defer the additional funding needs to the Finance Committee. MOTION CARRIED.

4. Upon motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Building and Lands Committee approved Change Order Number 4 from URS Corporation, Architects; The Migues Deloach Company, LLC for renovations at Bunkie Elementary School in the increased amount of \$11,542.00 and that funding for the increased amount be sent to the Needs Assessment Committee for approval. MOTION CARRIED.

5. Mr. Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor, addressed the Building and Lands Committee regarding revising the document to lease Section 16 lands pertaining to the lease period, number of hunters allowed, the number of campsite allotments, number of stands allowed per hunter, and limit number of bodies on property.

Board Member Michael Lacombe recommended that the Board revise the lease period to read as follows: "Lease period: Five years with the option to renew for five years at an increased cost of 10% per optional renewal period."

The Building and Lands Committee agreed upon the following revisions:

Lease period: Five years with the option to renewal for five years at an increased cost of 10% per optional renewal period. Number of hunters allowed: Maximum of 15 hunters Number of campsite allotments: 15 individuals must lease campsite at \$400 yearly Number of stands allowed per hunter: 2 per person Limit number of bodies on property: 30

Upon motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, the Building and Lands Committee recommended to approve the above revisions as noted. MOTION CARRIED.

6. Upon motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Building and Lands Committee recommended to extend the date to collect payment of campsite leases from June 30 to July 31, 2011 due to the rising river states. MOTION CARRIED.

7. Mr. Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor, addressed the Building and Lands Committee regarding a funding source for asbestos abatement for Marksville High School home economics building and Avoyelles High School home economics building (QSCB projects).

Upon motion by Cindy Hill, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Building and Lands Committee recommended to refer the funding source to the Finance Committee. MOTION CARRIED.

The Building and Lands Committee respectfully recommends the adoption of this

report.

Michael Lacombe, Chairman Building and Lands Committee

On motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Freeman Ford, the Board adopted the Building and Lands Committee Report as presented by Chairman Lacombe. MOTION CARRIED.

8. Mr. Darrell Wiley, Chairman of the Bus Committee, presented the following report:

Bus Committee Report May 24, 2011

The Bus Committee of the Avoyelles Parish School Board met Tuesday, May 24, 2011, at 5:00 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present:

Darrell Wiley, Chairman; Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, Freeman Ford, Cindy Hill, Van Kojis, President; and Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent. Also present were James Gauthier, Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Shelia Blackman-Dupas, and Michael Lacombe, Board Members; Wilfred Ducote, Transportation Supervisor; Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor; and Donna Bordelon, Special Services Supervisor.

1. Mr. Wilfred Ducote, Transportation Supervisor, presented a bid-opening committee report on the sale of used buses, as follows:

Report of the Bid-Opening Committee Sale of Used Uses

On Tuesday, May 10, 2011, at 1:30 p.m. a committee met at the Avoyelles Parish School Board Office to accept bids for the sale of four (4) school buses.

Members of the committee were James Gauthier, Board Member; Mary Bonnette, Finance Director; Steve Marcotte, Supervisor of Maintenance; and Wilfred Ducote, Supervisor of Transportation.

The committee acknowledged receipt of the following bids:

Bidder	Bus Number	Bid Price
Glenn Ducote	138	\$751.11
	103	\$751.11
	101	\$751.11
	181	\$751.11
Robert Turnage	103	\$600.00
Wayne Marcottte	138	\$501.00
	103	\$501.00
	101	\$501.00
	181	\$501.00

Upon motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, the Bus Committee recommended that the Board accept the high bid submitted by Glenn Ducote as specified in the report. MOTION CARRIED.

2. Mr. Wilfred Ducote, Supervisor of Transportation, addressed the Bus Committee regarding lease purchasing of school buses.

Upon motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, the Bus Committee recommended to refer this matter to the Finance Committee for a funding source. MOTION CARRIED.

The Bus Committee respectfully recommends the adoption of this report.

Darrell Wiley, Chairman Bus Committee

On motion by Darrell Wiley, seconded by James Gauthier, the Board adopted the Bus Committee Report as presented. MOTION CARRIED.

9. Mr. Freeman Ford, Chairman of the Executive Committee, presented the following report:

Executive Committee Report May 31, 2010

The Executive Committee of the Avoyelles Parish School Board met Tuesday, May 31, 2011, at 4:30 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present:

Freeman Ford, Chairman; Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., James Gauthier, Michael Lacombe, Van Kojis, President; and Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent. Also present were Darrell Wiley, Shelia Blackman-Dupas, Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, and Cindy Hill, Board Members.

1. The Executive Committee acknowledged receipt of three applications for the Corinne Saucier Scholarship. It was noted that one scholarship was available for the 2011-2012 school year.

Upon motion by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., seconded by James Gauthier, the Executive Committee recommended to award the scholarship to Jamie D. Williams, student at Marksville High School. MOTION CARRIED.

2. Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., the Executive Committee recommended to advertise for the position of registered nurse for Bunkie Elementary School. It was noted that the applicant must have a current license and two years nursing experience. MOTION CARRIED.

The Executive Committee respectfully recommends the adoption of this report.

Freeman Ford, Chairman Executive Committee

On motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Board adopted the Executive Committee Report as presented. MOTION CARRIED.

10. Mr. James Gauthier, Chairman of the Education Committee, presented the following report:

Education Committee Report May 31, 2011

The Education Committee of the Avoyelles Parish School Board met Tuesday, May 31, 2011, at 5:00 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present:

June 7, 2011

James Gauthier, Chairman; Shelia Blackman-Dupas, Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Darrell Wiley, Van Kojis, President; and Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent. Also present were Freeman Ford, Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, Michael Lacombe, and Cindy Hill, Board Members; and Randy Littleton, Supervisor of Elementary Education.

1. Mr. Randy Littleton, Supervisor of Elementary Education, presented Rapides Foundation surveys for the committee's review.

2. Mr. Randy Littleton, Supervisor of Elementary Education, presented an update report on summer school.

3. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine presented a report on LEAP and iLEAP test scores.

4. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine presented a report on the progress towards 2012 Board goals.

The Education Committee respectfully recommends the adoption of this report.

James Gauthier, Chairman Education Committee

On motion by James Gauthier, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Board adopted the Education Committee Report as presented. MOTION CARRIED.

11. Mr. Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Chairman of the Finance Committee, presented the following report:

Finance Committee Report May 31, 2011

The Finance Committee of the Avoyelles Parish School Board met Tuesday, May 31, 2011, at 5:30 p.m. at the School Board Office with the following members present:

Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Chairman; Shelia Blackman-Dupas, Cindy Hill, Michael Lacombe, Van Kojis, President; and Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent. Also present were Darrell Wiley, James Gauthier, Rev. Mary Hayward-Jones, and Cindy Hill, Board Members; and Mary Bonnette, Director of Finance.

1. Upon motion by Cindy Hill, seconded by Michael Lacombe, the Board approved requests for overnight travel as presented by Superintendent Lemoine. MOTION CARRIED.

2. Mr. Tom Hudson with Norris Insurance Consultants presented the quotation submitted for property insurance for the 2011-2012 fiscal year.

Bids were received from the following agencies:

Agent	Company	Premium
Risk Services First Insurance	Affiliated FM	\$168,167
Earl P. Lemoine	Employers Mutual	\$175,211
Cottonport Insurance Agency	Continental Casualty	\$211,322
Union Bank Insurance	Ironshore/Axis	\$448,570

Mr. Hudson informed the Board that the two most competitive bids were received from Risk Services of Louisiana, First Insurance and Earl Lemoine Agencies. After review of the quotes, Mr. Hudson recommended the purchase of First Insurance quote with the option of \$40,000,000 per occurrence coverage for a reduced premium to \$150,762 and to include terrorism coverage for an additional premium of \$5000.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Finance Committee recommended to accept the bid submitted by First Insurance in the amount of \$150,762 for property insurance coverage. MOTION CARRIED.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Finance Committee recommended to include terrorism insurance for an additional \$5000 for fiscal year 2011-2012. MOTION CARRIED.

Mr. Hudson also reviewed the renewal casualty premium for 2011-2012 with the committee.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to approve the 2011-2012 casualty premium renewal with First Insurance for \$424,007 plus an agency fee of \$20,000 totaling \$444,007. MOTION CARRIED.

Mr. Lacombe stated that he felt the \$20,000 agency fee was excessive.

Upon motion by Cindy Hill, seconded by Michael Lacombe, the Finance Committee recommended to purchase additional liability coverage for law enforcement activities from PCAL for 2011-2012 at a premium of \$4704. MOTION CARRIED.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to reject uninsured motorist coverage for 2011-2012. MOTION CARRIED.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to appoint Mary Bonnette, Finance Director, to represent the Board with regard to insurance matters. MOTION CARRIED. Mr. Mike Desoto of First Insurance informed the committee that a dividend will be received from PCAL by July totaling approximately \$20,000 due to recent renewals with PCAL.

Mrs. Bonnette stated that quotes and renewals for the 2011-2012 fiscal year have generated a savings of \$55,182 from the 2010-2011 year.

3. Upon motion by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to grant exemption from sales tax for the purpose of construction of the Pre-K building at Plaucheville Elementary School and the LaSAS multi-purpose gymnasium. MOTION CARRIED.

4. Upon motion by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to advertise for fiscal auditor for the year ending June 30, 2011. MOTION CARRIED.

5. Mrs. Mary Bonnette, Director of Finance, reviewed the Title XIX Budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. Mrs. Bonnette stated that estimated revenues were \$568,600 and expenditures totaled \$539,320 resulting in an estimated surplus of \$29,280. This will enable the Board to maintain current staffing and the conversion of two (2) contracted nurses to employee status.

6. Mrs. Mary Bonnette, Director of Finance, reviewed the LaSAS budget. Mrs. Bonnette reviewed estimated revenues of \$2,382,646 and expenditures of \$2,266,455. Indirect cost to the Avoyelles Parish School Board includes \$69,000 with an estimated surplus of \$47,191.

7. Mrs. Mary Bonnette, Director of Finance, explained to the committee that Parsons Benefit Services has provided the Board with an analysis of premiums versus benefits earlier this year and the recommendation was that the Board remain with OGB based upon this comparison. Recent changes to OGB, however, such as notification of a short plan year and recent state budget cuts have projected further inquiries regarding insurance.

Mrs. Bonnette recommended to the committee to hire Parsons to accumulate data in order to obtain health insurance quotes. The fee required to begin this process is \$8500, as outlined in the contract.

Upon motion by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, seconded by Cindy Hill, the Finance Committee recommended to contract with Parsons Benefits Services. MOTION CARRIED.

8. Mrs. Mary Bonnette, Director of Finance, reviewed the results of the MFP simulation prepared by the Louisiana Department of Education. She informed the committee that a net MFP level increase of \$294,599 as a result of the recent proposed sales/ad valorem tax proposed will be added to the proposed tax amount of approximately \$1,800,000.

9. The Finance Committee discussed additional funding for Pre-K building at Plaucheville Elementary School as well as a funding source for asbestos abatement for Marksville

High School home economics building and Avoyelles High School home economics building. Mrs. Bonnette presented the following cost figures:

	<u>Cost</u>
Plaucheville Pre-K Asbestos Removal at Marksville High School and Avoyelles High School Change order at Bunkie Elementary School (door)	\$29,200
	\$41,450 <u>\$11,542</u>
Total Additional Costs	\$82,192

Upon motion by Shelia Blackman Dupas, seconded by Michael Lacombe, the Finance Committee recommended to utilize Hurricane Contingency Funds for the purposes listed above. MOTION CARRIED.

buses.

10. The Finance Committee discussed funding for lease purchasing of school

Upon motion by Cindy Hill, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Finance Committee recommended to send the request to the needs assessment committee for utilizing up to \$100,000 in district funds to fund annual lease payments for buses. MOTION CARRIED.

The Finance Committee respectfully recommends the adoption of this report.

Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., Chairman Finance Committee

On motion by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Board adopted the Finance Committee Report as presented. MOTION CARRIED.

12. President Van Kojis acknowledged receipt of a proposal for official journal of the Board from <u>The Avoyelles Publishing Company</u>.

On motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the Board agreed to award the proposal to the <u>Avoyelles Publishing Company</u> in the amount of \$6 per square for official journal of the Board for the period beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. MOTION CARRIED.

13. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine presented a proposed resolution that the Avoyelles Parish School Board does hereby support legislation that would enact a moratorium regarding "Letter-Grade Labeling of Schools" and "Value-Added Employee Evaluations" and approval of any additional Charter Schools other than Type 4 Charters.

Upon motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by James Gauthier, the Board unanimously adopted the following resolution:

AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, PreK - 12 public education has endured a series of continued budget cuts at the state and federal level that affect services to students; and,

WHEREAS, at the state level, the MFP (Minimum Foundation Program) will not be fully funded with the 2.75% growth factor for three consecutive budget cycles; and,

WHEREAS, at this time, Louisiana is involved with a pending transition to national, common educational standards and assessments that will affect accountability requirements; and,

WHEREAS, at this time, the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (commonly referred to as No Child Left Behind) is pending reauthorization that will affect statewide accountability measures; and,

WHEREAS, the State's ultimate and primary responsibility is to support and fund public education first in a way that is accountable to the tax payers, and, unless and until the State can meet this obligation, the proliferation of Type 1, 2, 3 and 5 Charter Schools is contrary to that purpose and goal; now,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Avoyelles Parish School Board does hereby support legislation that would enact a moratorium regarding "Letter-Grade Labeling of Schools" and "Value-Added Employee Evaluations" and approval of any additional Charter Schools other than Type 4 charters; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Louisiana School Boards Association, to the Governor of Louisiana, members of the Avoyelles Legislative Delegation, the State Superintendent of Public Education, to the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education, and all Superintendents throughout the state.

14. Mr. Steve Marcotte, Maintenance Supervisor, stated that a committee met for the purpose of evaluating proposals for an architect for the LaSAS multi-purpose gymnasium. Mr. Marcotte stated that the committee recommended to employ JGA Architects.

Upon motion by Michael Lacombe, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Board agreed to employ JGA Architects.. MOTION CARRIED.

15. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine recommended that the Board appoint the following certified teachers for the 2011-2012 school year, as follows:

Upon motion by Carlos A. Mayeux, seconded by Shelia Blackman-Dupas, the Board agreed to appoint the certified teachers for the 2011-2012 school year as presented. MOTION CARRIED.

BUNKIE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Dexter Compton, Principal; Anita G. Bonnette, Assistant Principal; Janet Bledsoe, Deborah Hart, Donna Jeansonne, Sarah Riche, Valerie Bandy,

M

Debra LeBlanc, Rene L. Suire, Sarah M. Ducote, Tara Chachere, Sharonda Randall, Brenda Lavergne, Bertha Wilson, Kindergarten; Brandi Bubenzer, Kindergarten; Kenneth Ford, Physical Education; Charlotte Murphy, Title I CSR; Debbie Bubenzer, Literacy Coach; Shannon Jeansonne, Title I Pre-K; Ilene Murdock, Mild/Moderate; Susan O'Brien, Handicapped Infant; and Wonona Strong, Adaptive P.E.

COTTONPORT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Wendy Adams, Principal; Nathan Laborde, Assistant Principal; Suzanne Bordelon, Lisa B. Breaux, Brandi B. Chatelain, Anita Chenevert, Linda Firmin, Kayla J. Laborde, Pam Laborde, Amy McMullan, Wanda Salzer, Nicole Townsend, Sheila Saucier, Kindergarten; Nick Joffrion, Physical Education; Samantha Clayton, Title I CRS; Alicia Brown, Title II CSR; Jessica Alana Lemoine, Literacy Coach; Vickie Mayeux, Title I Pre-K; Andre Spruill, Title I Pre-K; Leslie Schexyder, Mild/Moderate; Michelle Cicudadano, Mild/Moderate; Howard Jeansonne, Severe Profound; Celestial Mato, Autism; Linda Carpenter, NCPS; Jennifer Harper, Adaptive P.E.; Joan Tebow, Speech Therapist; and Brenda Sampson, Behavior Interventionist IDEA-B.

LAFARGUE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Denise Sayes, Principal; Sharice Sullivan, Assistant Principal; Sarah Bordelon, Stephanie Bordelon, Jackie Borrel, Diane Bringol, Jessica Dauzat, Johnny Ducote, Chantelle H. Hataway, Karen Laborde, June Nation, Jennifer Nicholas, Donna Reuter, Shaun Reynaud, Julie Ryland, Terri Shannon, Karen Skursky, Lisa Turner, Deree Vicknair, Robin Williber, Brittany Beaubouef, Kindergarten; Krystle Reynaud, Kindergarten; Carol Simon, Kindergarten; Christy Guillot, Kindergarten; Rose Roy, Media Specialist/Interventionist IDEA B; Steve Turner, Physical Education; Denton Spinks, Physical Education; Casey Lambert, Title I CSR; Sheryl Parker, Title II CSR; Brenda Crooks, Literacy Coach; Paula Scanlan, Title I Pre-K, Linda Gagnard, LA 4 Pre-K; Gale Littleton, LA 4 Pre-K; Mary Ellen Dunlap, Mild/Moderate; Margaret Borrel, Mild/Moderate; Marilyn Alletag, NCPS; David Deshautelle, Adaptive P.E.; and Gwen Descant, Speech Therapist.

MARKSVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Catherine Brouillette, Principal; Wendy Marchand, Assistant Principal; Jessica Benoit, Kristin Bordelon, Valerie Bordelon, Jenise Borrel, Judith Davis, Stacey Duncan, Brandy B. Dupont, Wanda Ford, Nichole M. Gagnard, Christine George, Jolaina Guillory, Cicely Johnson, Robin Jouglard, Kelley A. Juneau, Pamela Knight, Kristy L. Lonidier, Judy Mathews, Samantha Mire, Torianna Robertson, Jennifer Sabree, Tanishia W. Tinson, Linda Voinche, Brandi Lacombe, Kindergarten; Rachel Miles, Kindergarten; Gertrude Milligan, Kindergarten; Sophia Wood, Kindergarten; Laura Hargis, Media Specialist/Interventionist; Quintin Demouy, Physical Education; Ronald Sampson, Physical Education; Jessica Gauthier, Title I CSR; Janie Skinner, Title II CSR; Francine Sons, Literacy Coach; Tammy Tassin, Title I Pre-K; Simone Voinche, Title I Pre-K; Lori Boudreaux, LA 4 Pre-K; Michele Mayeux, Interventionist; Clarisse Dugas, Mild/Moderate; Teodocia Magday, Mild/Moderate; Jacquelyn Starns, Severe Profound; Kate Borrel, Autism; Stacy Bordelon, NCPS; and Jeanie Akridge, Speech Therapist.

PLAUCHEVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Jennifer Dismer, Principal; Tonenikea Wilson, Assistant Principal; Stephanie Belanger, Sondra Bordelon, Kathleen M. Couvillion, Tara Gauthier, Rhonda Goudeau, Aimee C. Hayes, Kristen Hukins, Caneshia Jacob, Charlene Kelone, Andrea G. Lemoine, Kara Lemoine, Roxanne Lemoine, Carla Moreau, Michel Morgan, Angela Pastor, Pamela Rabalais, Marjorie Gaines, Steven Scott, Claudia Crabtree, Kindergarten; Lisa Deshautelle, Kindergarten; Rhonda Gauthier, Kindergarten; Lauri Burke, Media Specialist/Interventionist; Esaw Owens, Physical Education; Erin Lacour, Title II CSR; Sara Venable, Literacy Coach; Vicki Dufour, Title Pre-K; Rhonda Rabalais, Title I Pre-K; Charissa Lemoine, LA 4 Pre-K; Chrissie Jeansonne, Interventionist; Tammy Lemoine, Inclusion; Patricia Rebouche, Inclusion; Penny Bergeron, NCPS; and Lillie Armand, Speech Therapist.

RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Delores Rabalais, Principal; Althea Dupar, Assistant Principal; Mary Allen, Contina Anderson, Keithca Callihan, Casey Foret, Ginger Gremillion, Kellie Guilbeau, Danielle Hays, Maxine Mury, Hope Newcomb. Sherry Reech, Cindy Roblin, Katharine Rostek, Barbara Vead, Darcie Lartique, Kindergarten; Brandy Lawson, Kindergarten; Blandina Zaunbrecher, Media Specialist/Interventionist; William Beebe, Physical Education; Jennifer Franks, Title I CSR; Sarah Reech, Title II CSR, Kim Adams, Literacy Coach; Susan Bordelon, Title I Pre-K; Yvonne Saucier, Title I Pre-K; Wanda Brown, Mild/Moderate; Bradley Moreau, Adaptive P.E.; and Aimee Moreau, Speech Therapist.

AVOYELLES HIGH SCHOOL: Brent Whiddon, Principal; Mary Speer, Principal; Scott Balius, Marc Blake, Angela Blanchard, Andrew Boone, Marcy Center, Eric Dauzat, Eugenia Desselle, Tambra Dupont, Tiffany Dupont, Sonya Durand, Leta Fletcher, Joey Gauthier, Pat Joffrion, Marion Kathi Lemoine, Kelsey Osman, Michael Rachal, Davani Tassin, Mark Wellman, Thomas Wellman, Terry Laborde, Rene Corley, Jessica Prevot, Fabian Barbin, Music; Lance Gauthier, Agriculture; Linda Bott, Journey for Careers; Samantha Roy, Guidance Counselor; Shane Henderson, JAG Coordinator; Kathy L. Lemoine, Title I Facilitator; Joel Tassin, Mild/Moderate; Travis Armand, Mild/Moderate; Alma Natividad, Severe Profound; and Matthew Deshotel, In School Suspension.

BUNKIE HIGH SCHOOL: Dewayne Vines, Principal; Amy Cole, Assistant Principal; Jill Bain, Quiana Bell, Dustin Borrel, Elizabeth Dickens, Regine Guillot, Doris Leary, Dodi McKey, Chuck Normand, Frank Palermo, Morey Skluzacek, Allen Thomas, Bruce Webb, Melissa White, Janice Williams, Terry Laborde (one-half time), Mary Marcotte, Media Specialist; Anne Lemoine, Music; Pamela Deshotel, FACS; Randy Ducote, Agriculture; Jacqueline Murdock, Business; Carla M. Moreau, Business; Chantelle Blankenship, Guidance Counselor; Carliss Duper, School Improvement; Dolly Rousseau, Title II, Read 180; Emmanuel Enclona, Content Mastery; Rosario Lubanga, Content Mastery; George Mitchell, Severe Profound; Kenneth Knight, In School Suspension; and Eddie Andrus, Middle School JAG.

MARKSVILLE HIGH SCHOOL: Celeste Voinche; Principal; Cindy Schaub, Assistant Principal; Tina Anderson, Cassie Austin, Amy Bihag, Sheri Bourgeois, Sara Brister, Robert Cole, Ann Collins, John T. Dunbar, Chris Dupuy, Judd Dupuy, Marilou Garin, Minnie Lafargue, Heath Lewis, Amy Pitre, Justin Webb, Shantella Barton, Media Specialist; Timothy Masling, Music; James Deshautelle, Agriculture; Benny Brouillette, Elective; Susan Cole, FACS; Roxanne Couvillion, Elective; Felice Edwards, Elective; Marian Gonzales, Business; Donald Sampson, Dean of Students; Alicia Laborde, Guidance Counselor; Kirby Roy, JAG Coordinator; Julie Humble, Title I; Liza Jacob, Staff Development Coach; Anthony Augustine, Staff Development Coach; Rochelle Baldoz, Content Mastery; Angie Champ, Content Mastery; Maria Eroja, Content Mastery; Ritzell Veade, Severe Profound; Sharon Vasser, Mild/Moderate; and Houston Brewer, Mild/Moderate Itinerant. LOUISIANA SCHOOL OF AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES: Debbie Bain, Principal; Monique Gaspard, Assistant Principal; Jessica Arnold, Jeremy Bonnette, Ward Bordelon, Brent Deshautelle, Sarah Dupont, Cheyenne Guillory, Paul McHenry, Angela Normand, Fran Townsend, William Williber, Jennifer Dismer, Yvonne Mariki, Michelle Roy, Media Specialist/Curriculum Coordinator; Dawn Pitre, FACS; Robin Moreau, Agriculture; Dustin Moreau, Agriculture; Danielle Newson, Agriculture, Bonnie Leduc, Business; Katie Hill, Journey for Careers; Deborah Gaspard, Guidance Counselor; Wayne Lemoine, JAG Coordinator; Mary Jackson, Content Mastery.

APAS: Allen Wanersdorfer, Principal; Melvin Jackson, Pattie Riche, Angela Franks, Luke Welch, Technology Coordinator; Richard Bottni, Content Mastery; Lisa Hebert, Homebound; Sherrie Hodnett, Homebound; Kathy Decuir, Homebound Infant; Penny Hale, Homebound Infant; Deanna Wright, Handicapped Infant; Catherine Lemoine, IEP Facilitator IDEA-B; Cherrie Callahan, Educational Diagnostician; Ava Hernandez, Educational Diagnostician; Barbara Loukadakis, Social Worker; Connie Price, Educational Diagnostician; Monique Mayeux, Educational Diagnostician; Vickie Michel, Nurse.

Gilda Compton, Gifted; Mary Pujol, Hearing Impaired; Lucy Wright, IDEA-B Curriculum Coordinator; Michael Tanner, SIS Coordinator; Elizabeth Jeansonne, Title I Mobile Classroom Teacher; Sue White (Title XIX), Nurse Coordinator; Cheryl Armand, (Title I Nurse); Lucille Guillory, (Title XIX Nurse), Louanna Bain, Nurse; Scarlet Scallan, (Title XIX Nurse); and Christina Coco, Nurse; Lisa Thevenot, Adult Education Coordinator; and Errol Laborde IDEA-B Computer System Specialist.

CENTRAL OFFICE: Dwayne Lemoine, Superintendent; Craig Foster, Assistant Superintendent; Donna Bordelon, Supervisor of Special Education; Randy Littleton, Supervisor of Elementary Education; Susan Welch, Supervisor of Secondary Education; Thelma Prater, Director of Federal Programs; Irma Andress, Supervisor of Federal Programs; Robert Gaspard, Supervisor of Child Welfare and Attendance; Sharon Hargis, Supervisor of Food Service; Mary Bonnette, Director Finance; Wilfred Ducote, Supervisor Sales Tax/Transportation; Steve Marcotte, Supervisor of Maintenance; Pat Ours, Title I Visiting Teacher; Demetria Alexander, Title II Visiting Teacher; and Rebecca Spencer, TECH/CLU Coordinator.

16. Superintendent Dwayne Lemoine presented personnel changes for the Board's consideration, as follows:

PERSONNEL CHANGES

BUNKIE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of Margaret Vidrine, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 20, 2011.

LAFARGUE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of Catherine Diane Tyler, teacher, effective May 20, 2011; and resignation of Faye D. Borrell, teacher, effective May 20, 2011.

MARKSVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of Anna Gray, teacher, effective May 20, 2011, for the purpose of retirement; and resignation of Gwendolyn Franks, paraprofessional, effective at the end of the day May 20, 2011, for the purpose of retirement.

June 7, 2011

PLAUCHEVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of Jennifer Dismer, Principal, effective at the end of the day August 9, 2011.

RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of George Franklin, Jr., teacher, effective May 20, 2011, for the purpose of retirement.

AVOYELLES HIGH SCHOOL: Resignation of Queen Alexander, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 20, 2011; and resignation of Michelle S. Deshotels, teacher, effective August 10, 2011.

LOUISIANA SCHOOL FOR THE AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES: Resignation of Diana L. Sheppard, English Highly Skilled Educator, effective at the end of June 3, 2011; and resignation of Suzette Dufour, teacher, effective May 24, 2011, for the purpose of retirement.

MARKVILLE HIGH SCHOOL: Resignation of Gail Harvey, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 19, 2011; resignation of Garland Desselle, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 19, 2011; resignation of Barbara Cole, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 19, 2011; resignation of Rufus C. Johnson, teacher, effective May 20, 2011; resignation of Ronald J. Roy, teacher, effective May 20, 2011; and resignation of Stephanie Moreau, teacher, effective May 30, 2011.

APAS: Resignation of Peggy Joshua, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 20, 2011.

ADDENDUMS 6/7/2011

LAFARGUE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Resignation of Bertha Sue Mayeux, teacher, effective June 6, 2011; and transfer of Jessica Hayes, NCPS paraprofessional, to technology aide, effective August 10, 2011 to May 25, 2012.

MARKSVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Transfer of Glenda Bettevy, 8 (g) paraprofessional, to Title I paraprofessional, effective August 10, 2011 to May 25, 2012.

PLAUCHEVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: Appointment of Linda Thomas, autism paraprofessional, effective August 10, 2011 to May 25, 2012; transfer of Patricia Wells, autism paraprofessional to special education interventionist, effective August 10, 2011 to May 25, 2012.

AVOYELLES HIGH SCHOOL: Resignation of Michelle Lemoine, teacher, effective June 2, 2011.

BUNKIE HIGH SCHOOL: Transfer of Victoria Bihm, special education paraprofessional to inschool suspension paraprofessional, effective August 10, 2011 to May 25, 2012.

LOUISIANA SCHOOL FOR THE AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES: Resignation of Anita Kerry, teacher, effective at the end of the day May 20, 2011.

On motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., the Board approved the personnel changes as presented by Superintendent Lemoine. MOTION CARRIED.

17. On motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Carlos A. Mayeux, Jr., the Board agreed to renew contracts for the following administrative employees:

(1) Craig Foster, Assistant Superintendent, effective July 21, 2011 through July 20, 2013; (2) Sharon Hargis, Food Service Supervisor, effective August 5, 2011 through August 4, 2013;
(3) Dexter Compton, Principal of Bunkie Elementary School, effective July 20, 2011 through July 19, 2013; (4) Allen Wanersdorfer, Principal of APAS, effective July 20, 2011 through July 19, 2013; and (5) Cindy Schaub, Assistant Principal of Marksville High School, effective August 31, 2011 through August 30, 2013. MOTION CARRIED.

18. Board Member Michael Lacombe presented the "Administrative Assignment" Study Group Report for Unitary Status for the Board's review and study. Mr. Lacombe expressed his thanks to all individuals who assisted in preparing this handbook.

There being no further business, on motion by Freeman Ford, seconded by Darrell Wiley, the meeting was adjourned.

President

Secretary-Treasurer